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Between: Cro11 Petitioner 
Petl�ione, And: 

Advoaate a.a. aoxall. !oz th• 1'1&!.ntif!. 
ld'locat• a.ta. llosa:i, foa: the Dtifendant.. 

TD �XIODIIAS'! BAILil'r: These pxoceedings form part of the numerous 
issues which have arisen between Mr, and Mrs. M consequent 
upon the breakdown of theix marriage. 

Although the marriage hae now ended it will be convenient to 
refer to them as husband and wife. 

Mr. and Mrs. M were 
The�e are two ohildren of the 

� 
born 

....- born 

1\\8.rried in Jersey, 
rnar:riage; 

r 1988; 
1989 

U\ 1987. 

It was the bueband' u thi:cd and the wife's first marr·iage, 

Matrimonial proceedinga were oomrnenoed by the wife in August 
1991, the p,tition being filed on 10th September, 1991, The 
petition was contested and, with the answer e oroaa-petition was 
filed �lleging that the wife had committed adultery. 

In &ddi�ion the husband issued an o�de� of Justice by which 
he obtained injunctions, se�ved on the wife on 12th October, 1991, 
pceventinq her.from: 

"(1) remaining in or re-entering the matrimonial home 
in the Parish 0£ St. Saviour 

or approaching withln ti£ty yards thereof; 

(Li} harming, molestinv, contacting or communicating in any 
way whatso�ver with the Pla1nt1tt or any 0£ his 
colleagues or bus1ness assoaiates, save for the purpose 
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of arranging access to the children of the marriage by 
prior agreement with the Plainti£L1 

(1ii) damaging, hiding, retaining, ·disposing oL or in 1ny way

interfering with any belongings 0£ the Plaint1ff". 

These p.:coceedings were conteated by the w;lfe and it suffices 
to say that 4fter a 32 day hearing the Court, by• majority on the 
27th Januory, l992, permitted the wife to return to the 
matrimonial hQme, The judgment, clearly intended to be the 
prelude to a longer one which has not, however, been 
forthooming,inter alia : 

(1) granted the application and discharged the said interim
injunction contained in paragraph A(i) and (ii) of the
prayer of the said Order of Justice,

(2) re-imposed an interim 1njunction on tha f1rst detendant
restraining her trom:-

(i) harming or molesting the plaintiff, and
(ii) aont4ot1ng o� commun1oating w1th any of the

plaintiff's colleagues o� business aaaoo1ates fn
any £orm or manner adverse to him.

(3) ordered that each party should P"'Y their own costs",

Almost 1nevitably, further diffioulties arose between the 
parties following which the wife issued an application fo� an 
·interim injunction, This came before the Court, in Chambers, on
29th April,· 1992, at which time the wife had removed herself and
the children to the Women's Refuge, The husband made a counter
application alleging in part that the wife was in contempt of the
previous Order, whilst both paxtiea wished to have the children.

It is unnecessary to go into further details aa to this 
hearing, save to say that the Court ordered a further report from 
the Children's Office. 

, This was followed by a 8ummons by the husb�nd seeki�g staying 
aocees which oame before the Court, again sitting in Chambers, on 
20th May, 1992, In dea'11n9 with and refusing the summons the 
Court made it clear to both parties that they must understand that 
the· status qu o is not fixed pex:ma.nently by, any t empora:c:y 
�rrangement pending a hearing. 

The litigation then returned to the Court on 30th June, 1992, 
the report of the Children's officer, Mrs. J, Hart, havi�g by now 

·been prepa�ed, On the application of the husband he was granted a
decree nisi on the grounds of the wife's adulte�y, which had been
admitted by hex. The wife's petition, alleging cruelty,wae
dismissed by consent in that action; and the allegations of
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cruelty made by the husband were likewise withdrawn, again, 
insofar as concerned the divorce, The Court then endorsed an 
agreement reached between the parties as to the division of the 
matrimonial assets, the question of maintenance being left over 
until the end of the present proceedings. 

Following a further application from the husband for 
increased access pendente lite (which was refused), advice from 
counsel that 11oitation proceedings were now pending· (which we 
decided was a separate issue outside the purview of the present 
proceedings) and a 'Stateinant from counsel for the wife to the 

I effect that the action contemplated by the wife which had led to 
the hearing on 29th April, 1992, was now withdrawn, the points at 
issue between the parties before us at that hearing were limited 
as follows: 

first, the matters of co,ntempt raised in the husband' a
counterclaim: 

second, the prayers for custody, care and control of the 
children. 

AG this point the hearing had to be adjourned, as one of the 
Jurats felt disqualitied to continue, with the result that, the 
Court as now constituted had to resume and decide the isauea 
between the parties. 

This therefore brings us to the present hearing. Before 
dealing with'any of �he allegations we ought to say that the wife 
has removed to a flat found by the Housing Committee, The 
children are still with her and by agreement pendente lite the 
husband has access, but not staying access, on three days per 
week, 

Mr, Boxall for the,huaband submitted that this hearing was 
about the custody, care and control of the children. 

The children, he said, are the most important issue and in 
order to decide what best to do al:iout them would involve the,court 
in an examination of the behaviour and characters of the'parents. 

The husband's case is 1;hat although he accepts that the wife 
has a primitive and instinctive maternal love, she lacks judgment 
and· indeed control, as well as having neither the �aturity nor the 
basic goodness to complement that love. 

In particular, th� husband cortended that the wife is 
unsuitable to have custody, care and control of the children on 

· account of:

her low moral standards, dishonesty, amounting to being a
compulsive liar; violerioe in that she physically abuses the 
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children and has assaulted the husband; ugly vooabulary, flawed 
background; contempt of the law and of orders of the Court, and 
financial irresponsibi1ity, to which he added claims that.she has 
a burning resentment against the husband and undermined the 
children's relationship with him. Fu:thermore, she was not only 
unsuitable but not particularly maternal. 

The�e would be, he said, a high risk, if the ohildren were to 
be brought up by the wife, of delinqi;ienoy, and the chilQren would 
not obtain tbe sup�ort they need at the start of th•ir life. 

By contrast the fathe:i:, · he submitted, was a d.1 :f ferent 
character 

. Re was gentler, more patient, more compasaionate t and, with a 
deeper understanding, more able to oater for the needs of the 
children with who� �e had a close relationship. He was 
domesticated, and was flexible .u to.,hia workin; hours being Hlf-

·emp+oyed. Be was more cultured, better educated and more
financially aware than hie wife. To assist him he has loving
parents who are ready to assiat him, He was a man 0£ integrity
who had, he claimed, always been a good pro�ider. Furthermort!!, he
had no ,animosity towards the wife which might affect the children.
These attxibutes, he submitted, were not outweighed by his beirtg a
modest and conservative gambler,

In his evidence the husband stated that he is now aged 39, 
He was born in Bong Kong, where he was largely educated. His 
father �as in the Royal Bong Kong Police, retiring with the rank 
of Chief Superintendent, whilst his mother is Shanghaiese. 

He joined Barclays B&nk in 1971 and remained with the bank in 
various posts until aome time· in 1986, His final report and 
assessment may be described as good. Befo�e he resigned he had 
obt�ined promotion and held a position of responsibility. �e is 
clearly & man of above average ability and is able to express 
himself we;l and clearly. 

The husband came to this mar�iage with two failed �arriagea 
behind h:Lm. 

From his first marriag� he has a son K. . now aged 15 with 
whom he is still in contact. 

,From his own account of the failure of the first two 
marriages, it would seem that in both cases, after the pa�ties had 
cohabtted before marriage the relatiortship broke down afterwa�da 
due to a lack of �o�mitment of one or both the parties to the 
other. We note though in particular his statement that in tbe 
case of the first wife she had become depressed and imobile after 
the birth of K and had retx:eated back to her pu:ents W"he:re 
they had been living befo:re he was posted, 
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The husband had oome to Jeraey with his second wife from whom 
he was divorced, he thought, in 1984. He had met Mrs, M

("the wife" in these proceedings) during the bi:eakdown of 
the second marriage, and the relationship developed whi�e he waa 
aepaxated from his second wife, Having met the wife, and facing a 
posting by his employe:rs outside the Island he resigned as he 
wished to stay in the Island. 

He then found employment with Hambros Sank ae a lending 
officer to develop their lending book, He resigned from this 
position on 31st Ma�eh, 1992; and complained that his position 
there had been severely affected by his wife's actions. He had 
had a substantial and well paid job, and was now� self emploved 
financial consultant and sole proprietor of a 
cleaning fitm. Business is, he says, difficult in the current 
environment. 

We will return to the oireumstanoes ,of his leaving Hambros in 
due cou:rse. 

When the parties married in 
together for about 12 months, 

1987, they had been living 

The wife became pregnant during the honeymoon. The parties 
rented, and subsequently bought, the rnatEiMo?ial home, a detaehad
house which contained, inter alia, three double bedrooms and a 
small bedsitter flat attached to it. 

There were clea�ly difficulties attendant on the birth of 
/\{ She was one of twins, the other being lost at three 

months of p%egnancy, and at about seven months the wife was in 
hospital being treated for high blood pressure. 

Both parents, the husband said, were very pleased. Despite 
fal H 'alarms, N seemed happy, normal and healthy' 

He played a full part in the early days, and with the 
experience of having had a previous child, w�s initially more 
oontident when handling the baby'than the wife, with the result 
that he uaually bathed N' 

we were ahewn a-seri�s of photographa to demonstrate an 
affectionate father. We have no reason to doubt that he was, and 
that he did indeed help with the children when they were.little, 

. 

'0 was born It\. 1989, and a.ooot:ding to the 
husband's account the difficulties of the marriage would seem to 
date fxom this time, 

His wife, he said, found th� extra child limiting, ·which is 
hardly surprising as they were o�ly seventeen months apart, She 
became, he said, more agg:essive in her attitude to both him and 
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the children. with a tendency to lose patience more easily with 
the children. She stayed in a lot in the day time and would ask 
him to b�ing things £%om the shops. 

'It was about now that, having hardly sworn when they were 
f!rst married, the wife, although she wanted a third child aa late 
as Feb:tua:i:y/Marc:h, 1991, was by the time :·::r was one yeaz: old, 
liable when having diffic'\llty to ahout and sore&Un at the children, 
using bad and vulgar language, and if he would remonatrate with 
her on his return home she wotlld 'atorm oft into the kitchen. She 

. wae not, he aaid, coping with the situation early in 1991. Asked 
whether his wife wouid have appreciated a show of affection on his 
return home, after coping with two small children all day, the 
husband replied that his reaction was to p�otect the children's 
interests, He added that hie wife was not approachable at 6 p,rn. 
Asked whether on return, he had tried to put his arms round hei 
and make a fuss of h,� he replied that he had not tried it so far 
aa he could xecall, He waited, he said, uatil they went to bed at 
night. 

The wife's aoco�nt is that, in �articular when 1T waa 
young, he was not, on his return, reaily bothered with her: she 
felt l�ke the child being told off every time, There was no 
affection: he could not eve� cuddle her when he C8Il\e home from 
work. She needed, she said, adult cQnversation at the end of the 
doy out did not· get 1it, She never, she said, used .foul lanquage 
in front of the child.ten. She repeated these assertions in cross 
examination, when she complained that on his return she would get 
told off and instead of comfort would -:reoeive aggravation. 

On being further pressed in cross examination the wife 
asserted that she was no longer .impatient or oonf�ontational when 
the ohildren do push her: she now divetts them or takes away their 
privileges, Whan her husband·was there however as well, he �ould 
come'home, tell her off like a child a-nd then mollycoddle tbem, 
whilst she was tryini to discipline them, She objected to this 
method of rearing children, as he had no discipline and pampered 
the�. As for swearing, she admitted �arious'instanoea but 
Jn&intained that she did not do so in front of the chil��en; it w•s 
not, she sa'id, part of her characte:c with tham. When they oome· 
h� with swear words sh� cor:ects them. 

It �as cleax to us that the hu�band's retu�n from work merely 
put undue pressu�e on the wife, pressure which h�s greatly eased 
since they ceased to live together, We aqoept her evidence of the 
state of affairs which took place on his return home in preference 
to his. 

The husband believed, he said, that the wife has the ability 
to deal with the children if she applies herself, but if put unde� 
presJure takes out her feelings on t�a children both ve�bally ana 
physically. By the tiroe the mairiage broke down in 
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October/November, 1991, , V wu using the term "etupid baatard". 
If they continue to be exposed, he fears that their vocabulary 
will deteriorate. Her agg�eesive attitude must, he claimed, have 
a psychological affeot on the children. He conceded in oross­

examination that when the wife was not under pressure, she did not 
swear, It was, he said, just lack et control, He further 
conceded that despite the children having been with the wife sinoe 
the end of April, bad language by them at present was limited to 
7T · using the word "bastard" ooo�u,ionally when fiqhting with 
fV I • 

We will deal in due course with the views of t�e Child Care 
Off!cei:, M:rs. Hart, and a Nursery.Nurse at the Nuuety, 
neither of whom.gave evidence which remotely supported these 
particular allegation$. 

The wife is now a;ed 32. F.or some seven months she has been 
. employed as a ·part-time"seoretary to a local ehop fitting company. 

Her work is mainly secretarial, and during toe case at least she 
has been able to brihg work home. It is clear that she· ia not so 
well educated as the husband. 

He,:r present aooomnodation has a big bedroom fo:i:: the children, 
whilst she sleeps in the lounge. The flat, on her account, ie 
quite adequate for the family at pxeaent. She. has a car and loans 
for purchases are being met, 

Har view of the children at present, as compared to the 24th 
April (the date of their departure from thil- ho!.l.Sct.) is that they 
a.re two totally different ohildren, It was, she, aaid, a hor:dfic 
sight to see them laet year. They have put on weight and are 
happy. She has no disturbed nights with N · 1 though 0- often 
�akes in the early hours for a cuddle.· 

rv , she uid, ii happy to be e.t school; whilst u ii 
equally happy to be at Nursary on he� own. 

Subsequently, continuing her'examination-in-ohieft the wife 
�e evidence as to the �outine· she follows with the family,
7::T , she reaffirmed, still requi�ed comforting most nights, but 
both are doing well ·at school, She reads to the children before 
putting them to bed- and · · N I is making exoellant progreBB. 

·. If she goes out at night, which is rate, and, on average once
a month, she and the children sleep at ber parents' home. 

Access, she said, is now proceeding very well; she ia more 
placid now, with a diffexent oircle of friends and no longer 
swears at the children, She neve� speaks about the father, she 
said, in the sense of· making derogatory reJm1.rka, but just tells 
the children to go and enjoy themse�ves with him, 
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Aa to the marriage, the wife averred that there were problems 
on the honeymoon, but that she was overjoyed when, to her
surprise, she was pregnant with N . 1�e pregn�ncy was a 
difficult one and she spent some time in hospital where, ah� sai'd, 
on eaoh oeeasion that he oame (daily) she felt worse, as all he 
spoke about were his social enqagementa �t the hank, 

In oross-examination the .wife was pressed on tne 
circumstances surrounding the honeymoon. She complained of his 
gambling on.the honeymoon, and added, when preaeed, that he, the 
husband, was not the same person as before they married, aftex 
which his attitude changed. She did not realise that he was going 
to change so much. In her cross-examination the wife complained 
bitte�ly other husband's indifference. She likened him, indeed, 
to a robot, When he did make an.attempt to save the marriage it 
was, ahe said, too late, 

Although not di�eo��y relevant to the issue before us, theme

statements do give us, in our view, an insight into the unoerlying 
conditions of the marriage. We have formed the firm view that the 
husband's indifference, emotio�ally, to bis wife lay at the root 
of many of the problems which tinally oaused the marriage to 
founder,, 

To ret�rn to the children, however, the wife agreed that she 
was "nervy" after l"f 'a birth as she had never had a ba.by 
before and was frightened at first in case she dropped her. H�r 
husband had, she said, normally b�thed he�. She was not, she 
said, � difficult baby and slept all night at five week�, 

l::f was born 17 months after · N · and she was pleased to
be pregnant, she said, although she was sick moat of the time, 

We will return to the matrimonial problems.and the behavioui 
of �he parties as it founde�ed, insofar as the1 affect the 
children, in �ore detail in due course, as such allegations form a 
large part of the husband's oase, 

Both parties wish to be the· ma.in oare:rs for the chil·d:cen, 
and, in effect, both come before the cou�t seeking an awa�d in 
their own favour, 

1he wife made it perfectly clear that she had no confidence 
in the competence of the fathex to �ave care an� control of the 
ohildren: he would, she said, alwaya get someone else to do the 
wo:i=k, 

This, therefore, is the background ag�inst which we must 
· place the claims of the parties.

We turn now to the particular allegations and incidents upo� 
whioh the husband relies in seeking an order in his favour. 



- 9 -

The first of the series of alle;ations by the husband refers 
to various incidents of physical abuse of the children, As these 
incidents, her aggression and the genezal loss of control from 

,which he claims she tends to suffer are central to hia oa$e, it is 
necessary for us to �eal with them in som& detail, the more so as 
it was as a result of these three inoidenta and her general bad

langu�ge that the hueband claimed that he felt concerned enough to 
contest custody, H� does not know, he said, how his wife would 
cope as a single pa�ent. Before dealing with the allegations, 
however, we should note that he himself was prepared to use 
corporal punishment with the children, though in the" case of 'J'" , 
the more aggressive of the sisters, he keeps it, he said, to a 
minimum. ae had probably, he said, given o�e or other of the 
child�en a.serious smack on perhaps a total of half a dozen times. 
To react in that way was, he aqreed, caused by a momentary .loss of 
temper but was not a normal method of discipline in his opinion. 
In her evidence-in-chief the wite agreed that when the children 
were small s?ie 'hl\d smat:ked them on the ·bottom �:s, they weze' too 
small to reason with, Now that they are older she finds the 
threat of withdrawing their video after tea to be more effective, 
She hardly smacks them any more as they are very well behaved, 
She confirmed her husband's evidence as to his use of coxporal 
punish�ent, tho�gh she remarked that she thought he was, a few 
titt1.es, hard on N, 

These indidents we:e detailed i rt the answer and cross 
petition and consist of three gla�d as�aults. 

The first was on 7 when she was about l year old when, 
. 

t 

according to the husband, the wite could stand her crying no more 
and threw her down on the bed; the second aome six to eight months 
later in February, 1991, when he ola�ms that the wife threw 

rJ into � chair, again, fortunately �ithout serious damage, 
and the thitd at about the·aarne time when the wife, on his 
account, was unnecessa�ily violent in moving N out of the 
way with her foot. In examinationM in-chiet. he accepted that the 
children suffered no harm on any of these occasions. 

We think it necessary to deal' with each.of theae incidents in 
turn, 

The first one, in about, July, 1990, took place in the bedzoom 
at about 6 p .m. ·u was whing&ing and orying and generally 
unhappy, She was. standing by the bed. The wif� seemed to lose 
cont�ol for a moment, snatched N up f�Qm under her arma and 
th�ew her down on the bed with quite some force, shouting 
aomethiru� like "shut up". N was not ll,urt aa far a.a he could 
see: what concerned him was the way her head hit the �ed and came 

· up with a whiplash effect. He could see, he said, how d.ange�ous
it was. He told the wife off about it and the danger of whiplash.
She replied that the whingeing went straight through her,
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In oxosa-exa�ination when asked whethet h� was not 
exaggerating, he maintained that he thought it serious at the time 
and sti11 did, 

The wife's account of the incident in her evidence in ahief 
was that she recalled it; that ;r was then three months old, 
that ahe had had constant colio ln the day time - though not at 
night - and that with a 17 month old baby as well it was ve�y 
hard, The incident took plaoe in the day time, when her husband 
was not present, and he would not have heard of it unless she had 
told h;l.m. 

ln cross-e�aminatioq she ieiterated these statements, and 
reaffirmed th�t J was not thrown down so as to cause a whiplash 
injury and that she would have been watching when she threw her, 
The bed had a pillow on and,loads of duvets and she landed on 
thos�. 

The seoond al.legation, which followed some mon'ths later,· was 
that, again at about 5 p.m, when he returned ftom·work, he came in 
to find both children crying although he did not know why and the 
wife shout.i,ng, fiU,p�oia.lly at N . When N did not 
respond, the wife again picked her up under.her a:cms and threw her 
against the baok of an armchair. She was again, he said, 
unnecessarily violent, When he enqUired why she had done that and 
told he:c not to be so silly, hei: reply was that she should. "bloody 
well do as she's told11

, Luckily there was no spine_ on the back �f 
tl\e chair whe:i:e .... N- landed, The wife, he said, shewed no sign 
of reg�et or reil\Orse. The incident was skated. over and f he said, 
allowed to pass. 

In cr�ss-e�amination he denied that he had made the 
allegation up, 

In her evidence in chief the wife simply denied that this 
incident had taken place. In croas-examination she totally 
disagreed with the husband's evidence. f'J , she said, was 
very small and if she had done that she would have broken hex back 
�s the a�mchair was very hard: b� at the �ery least she would 
have bruised and damaged her back, 

The third incident took_place again at about the same time in 
the evening when the husband returned fxom work at about 6 p,m, 

.The situation in the loung.e w,u, h& said, tense. All fou� of 
the family were there, The husband waa watch�ng tele�ision and 

N was partly blocking the way into the kitchen. The wife 
. came out of the kitchen and :Ln1;1tead of walking ro'\lnd N 1, she 
told her to get out!£ the way. Nhen sne did not xespond at once 
she kicked he� with he toe of bet right foot, alad we heard in &

training shoe, tog t her out of the way. She kicke� her three 
times, after which rJ moved out of the 'tlay. 
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1he husband stated that he jumped up and remonstrated with 
the wife who, in his opinion·, had :beEJn \lnneoettsarily violent for 
no reason,

He picked rJ up, who waa c�ying by now, consoled her and 
rubbed her thigh, By memory, he thought that the wife had said 
that she, N , ahould get out of the way, . 

In cross-examination, he stated that he did not look for any 
bruins or marks.. H?wever, when he picked her up she settled, so 
he thought it was nothing serious, He had not, ha said, looked 
for bruises the next day. He could not remember wheth•r he had 
bathed N that niqht. He asserted, vigorously, that if the 

I wife were to say that 1he did not kick N violently but used 
her foot to move her out of the way, she would be lying. 

The wife in her evidence in ohie£ stated that the only time 
·· anything like· this happened was"' once. when N was sitting in 

front of her and she moved her with her foot when wearing 
slippers. She·could not %emernber if her husband was there, Any 
force was not unreasonable, N . was very skinny and tiny ,and 
if she had done aa stated, she would have bruised her 
conside,rably. 

In cross-examination she asae�ted that, aa 
and thin honed, had she kicked her she would have 
o:r would cert a inly,. at least have bz;u;l..sed he:i;. As 
husband picked N up, she could not remember. 

N io tiny 
broken her leg, 

to whether the 

The husband agreed that he had not reported any of these 
inoidents to the authorities, giving as ·his xeason that it was a 
ditficult matrimonial situation from time to time and his wife was 
isolating herself f%om him with regard to his employment, 

He was pressed on thia in arose-examination. He agreed that 
the marriage had been going down-hill from.the date of v 1 s 
birth in 1989, and claimed that the wife's attitude to his 
work and his absences from home was without justification in his 
view, as it was extremely xare for"him. to go.out without the·wife.

·He would attend various bank functions about a dozen times a year.
. . 

He conceded that the wtfe might quite conceivably have been 
un4a� stress at the time of the three incidents which he claims 
0cc1.1rred_. At the ti�e he ha.(l believed it was ou,t of oharaotex:, 
but trorn what he has learnt since, this part of her chata�ter, 
only shewn once N had artived, had shocked him. 

So far as he was aware the third assault was th.a last. 

He did nothing at the time: it was the cumulative effect 
which concerned him. Re had thought the first assault was out ol

character and told her off. Be had not, he said, diaoussed 
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discipline with he:z: as he thought it was not necessary. She .was 
an adult and knew how to conduct herself witb ohilch:en. 

When asked why he ho.d. left it for nine.·months before using it 
as a majo� argument to oust the wife f�om the mat�imonial home, he 
replied that it would simply have made the relationahip worse, 

. As to the ohilr:uen, he believed t��t the wife was fu11y aware 
that she wae acting improperly, and he hoped that as t�e children 
got older they would cause the wife less stress; that the 
incidents would not recur, and that he would be there to support 
her �nd stop her repeating he: actions. 

In cross-examinatio�, he again asserted that his concern for 
the ohildren waa not exaggerated. These were, he said, serious 
assaults, and shew the extent to �hioh the children are at risk. 
He had seen his first wife with his son, and based his view on the 
normal and acceptable behaviour of an adult with children. 

,, 

,' . .. . 

wa find no evidenoe to support the husband's allegations that· 
these incidents, insofar as they oocu;c�ed_and insofar as they can 
be classified as assaults bear anything like the weight which the 
husban� claims, and prefer the evidence of tbe wife regarding 
these three incidents. 

As to the wife's bad langn�ge, thia oleaxly occurred, the 
husb�nd clai:m(!id, at moments of st;cees, and concerned him. 

How�ver, to these incidents and his wife's bad language, he· 
has added a fucther list of allegations. 

The first of these, on his evidenoe, was his wife's general 
eharacte:r:, 

This �evolved &found her admitted adultery with "r. C 
-On his $qidence, tHe wife had not only lied to him about the
;relationship (which haa now ceased) but had also comnlitted pe�jury
when quastioned in previous Court proceedings. He strongly 
oojected to the association which, he said, could bave· been 
detrimental had the relationship continued, It was, furthermo�e, 
asserted by his counsel and confirmed by counsel for the wife that
in the course of counsel's a�drase in the previous proceedings the
Court, or at any �ate its President, stated that the Court
accepted that the wife was a liar .

. Quite apart from that, he was worried as to how the 
�elationship and the behaviour of the wife would impinge on the 

I 

children. Obviously, he said, they would have ):)een con.fused by 
the meetings; and if 'there wre a �elationship he presumed there 
would be a physical contact, 
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In cross-examination, he admitted he had, since the wite had
been away from the house, a liaison. In his case he ave�a, he has
been very consciou$ to ensure there is no affection shewn b&tweenI I him and this lady. They do not even hold hands in the presence of
the children who have met her, briefly,_ on one occasio.n, and at a
barbeoue in the garden one afternoon. He claimed that the
chilctren would have been confused by the association between the
wife and Mr. C as they weie still living as husband and 
wif�, but would not be confused in the same way by his new 
liaison, 

Besides, he olairns, the wife now has a new adrnirar. 

When this was put to the wife in her evidence in chief she 
stat�d that this allegation was rubbish and not t�ue, though she 
did hope to find somebody else in the future. It had not, she 
added, ·been much of a marriage. 

We must say at once that we cannot see that insofar as 
concerns the proceedings which are before ua, the case of one 
parent is either better or worse !n this regard than that of the 
other. 

The second was a series of allegations regarding his wife's 
beh�viour in general and her cruelty towards him and the effect it 
tiad on the children. 

The tirat part of the �llegation is that from about July, 
1991, the wife simply did not treat the husband as pa%t of the 
family. She attempted to seq�egate him from the child�en, whom 
she took into her bedroom, and prevented him from seeing them.at
�eekends, A series of incidents are pleaded, and tape recordings 
made in this period by the.husband were produced, On his evidence 
it is quite olear that the marriage by the aurnn\er of 1991 was 
under severe, indeed terminal strain, and that, inevitably, 
conflict over the children arose and formed part of the 
disagreement l:letween the parents with, equally inevital::ily, strain 
being placed on the children. In her evidence, the wife was 
cross-examined on these allega�ions. Sh� agreed that she had 
indeed, from about July; 1991, rest�ioted the time that the 
ohildren saw the husband.. one z:eason was that she had seen them 
left �n the oar outside the �ookmakers; where· she had he�self, on 
occasion, wafted threequarters of an hou:r £0:c the husband, She 
agreed that there had indeed been at least one incident when tha 
police were called; and took the opportunity to complain that by 
this time the husband was coming home at irregu·1a1: hours, 

Many of the same sort of.allegatio�a were put to the wife as 
'being the pattern af�e:r her return at the end of Janua:ry; and we 
believe it sufficea to say that we accept her assertion.that the
children then had the run of the house. · 
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It aeemed that although the husband considered that the 
marriage �xoka down in Ootober/November, 1991, the wife had 
already asked for a sepa;ation in June, 1991, a date some time 
after the assaults on the children which ha·olaimed so worried 
hi.JI\. Her ��quest took him aback. In his view, in this, she was 
ooncerned for herself and her interests overrode those of the 
children, 

This was followed, he claimed, by her refusal to perform 
wifely tasks, and, perhape not aurpr+singly, the atmosphe�e was 
more, strained than usual. 

By his account her only objection, insofar as conce�ned 
hi�self and the child.ren, ·was that he did r:'l.ot spend enough time 
with them, In examination-in-chief, he· said that the only time he 
insist�d·on having to himself was 20 minutes on most Saturday 
mornings and one hour on moat Saturday afternoons to follow the 
horses, He also had work commitment1, and oooaaionally h�d to go 
out at weekends to loo.k at pt'opertie;ti or to se• customers, when ha 
sometimes took his wife and/or the children, 

He conaide�s he took a normal father's role and took us 
throug� what he described as an average day. 

From this it was evident that he claimed that he was 
habitually at home, and that, on hie acco�nt, the pa�ente shared 
the tasks as they might well do in any other household with young 
children. 

In cross-examination, he was pressed as to the extent of his 
gambling which he denied was excessive, .although he agreed it was 
regular. If he had had another ·hobby he was sure that he would 
spend more time out of the house, 

Foi all that we have formed the opinion that the husband is 
an habitual gambler, We will return to this in due course when 
dealing with the finances of the family and of the husband in 
pa.rtioula:r:. 

There then followed claims by the husband of a series of 
as3aults by the wife. They cover a period between July and 

I • 

d September, 1991, when on th� husband's evidence the wife ha , as 
we say, already asked for, and by implication been refused, a 
separation, 

The first was that on 14th July, 1991, the husband claims 
that he was assaulted by the wife on his return home early on a 
Sunday morning. In his evidence in chief he offered no 

· explanation aa to where he had been or why his wife· was not with
him. Although he said his wife attacked him without explanation,
ha proffered the view that she had found a file note f�om a shut
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brietoaee whioh she had misinterpreted, He was not cross-examined
on this point and no evidence was led by the wife.

There followed an account of va�ious other assaults.

In hia evidence,· the husband stated that the wife had started
to try and alienate the children from him, and his efforts to keep
in oontaot with the children led to a series of domestic rows,

although wa do not understand how the assault to which we refer 
above could be so categorised, 

On his account, a oouple of days after the first incident, he 
�eturned home, this time at� p,m, Jnd found both children about 
to go up to bed, When he went to greet them, she hauled them away 
and en her way out, with ::r over her shoulder, she hit him, He 
never provoked his wife but only insisted verbally on his ri9ht to 
have normal accese to their child�en, 

Again, there was no cross-examination on this point and no 
evidence was led by the wife, 

�he next assault took place, he said, a few days later when, 
having been foz: 11. drink with other.bank staff he x:eturned home at 
7,30 p:m., and although the ohildren wer� going up to bed, not 
Qnly went to greet them but told his wife to ta�e J up to bed 

. and took Natalie into the garden in her pyjamas and dressing gown. 

His wife came up the garden with a rolling pin, and hit him 
on the back, whereupon he chased her down the garden and punched 
her on the most convenient point which was the back of her head. 
�here followed a furthe� stxuggle when, on hia own account, he 
held his wife down with his knee before picking up N and 
going baok to the ga:den. 

In cross-examination he asserted that his wife most.certainly 
did have a rolling pin in her hand, and conceded that he had hit 
her quite solidly on the back of the head, or to put it another 
way, with considerab1e force fa view contil:llled by Dr. Clinton who 
examined the wif.e late that evening) . The l)uaband conceded· that 
he had lost.his temper as a result of the wite refuaing hJ.ro normal 
access for weeks, the two previous unp:r::ovoked aae�ults and what he 
described aa the extreme PfOVOOation of that incident. It is 
clear that he did not consider his behaviour to have b•en 
provo�ative either during the incident, or, for th�t matter, prior 
to these assaults,

we 

huana.nd 
"Mr. C 
it. 

say thie even taking into account the·strain to which the 
would inevitably be plaoed by the wife's association with 

, rega�dless of the reaeons which might have led her to 
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. Once again, no evidence was led for the wife at to this 
incident. 

We should say that even on his own account, �his whole 
incident does the hu�band little oredit, and fills uome way short 
of convincing the Court that in acting as he did he had the 
children's interest at �eart rather than his own seltieh interest. 

The�e would then seem to have followed a cessation in the 
active hostilities between the parties a� the next assault 
complained of by the husband ooeur%�d on 21st August, 1991, when 
again on the husband's return home, this time at 6 p.m. by his 
account, and when again the husband insisted on seeing the 
children, �he wife once more reso�ted to a rolling pin and again 
there was a st�uggle, during which the wife tried to k�ee the 
husband in the groin and he forced her on to the bed, but being 
unable to disarm her, left the room in haste, Again, this account 
was accepted by the wife, 

�he following morning there waa anothex incident when the 
wife pulled the husband's hair. 

T�o-tape recordings made,· in circumstances which were not 
entirely clear to us, at the end of August, were played to us and 
confirm tha vie� as to tha family situation which we had fomed. 
�he husband advances theoe recordings as evidence thQt ne �as 
refused access. However, we note that the husband in the second 
Of the thr&e WU atheml)ting to dee.l direot with ' rJ :rathe:c 
than.with her mother and thus involving his daughtex in an 
argument which might have been bett1r oonduoted between the 
parents, The wife stated that she did not know these two 
conversations were being taped: though io fairness we have to aay 
that subsequently she taped a third conversation without informing 
the husband. It is, however, -germane to remark that in that tape 
recording, the wife accused the husband of taking the children to 
the bookmaker the previous week, and of telling them they would be 
going to live with his parents in England. 

On Sunday, 1st September, yet another.incident took place, 
By this time the husband had eithe� learnt or had a strong and 
weli founded suspicion of the wife's adulterous relationship. On 
the husband's account, the .wife, having taken the ohild:i::en away 
for most of the weekend returned at about 4.30 p.m. and after an 
argument, told the husband that she wanted him out.of t�e house so 
that-her parents oould babysit. The long and the short of it was 
that, inevitably, an argum$nt folJowed during which, while he had 

N in· his ar:mn, the wife pulled and scratched him. Both 
peu:;ties then oalled the polioe. 

Inci�ents'now followed thick and fast in what was clearly an 
intoler�Qle atmosphere. 
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On Saturday, 14th September, yet another incident took· piaoe, 
after N had come into her father'• room at about 8 a,m, The 
wife came in, alleged the room smelt of alcohol and accused him of 
setting a bad example to the children, she struck him and threw 
hie shoes at him, N , he said, was upset, and stood in the 

, 

doorway shouting, "no, Mummy, no , , ," He did not, he said, 
retaliate, In cross-examination he maintained that f\J had 
indeed stood in the doorway shoutinq •no, Mummy, no•, 

There was a further assault on 21st September. After telling 
the wife's niece not to interfere, an altercation took place 
between the parties, following which the wife slapped h·im, saying 
"I'll have you out of this house soon, mate". 

Again, this incident was not challenged by the wife, 

This was followed on 23r�September by the final assault 
complained of· by Ure husband in this series when, the husband 
having objected to t�e wife putting his belongings in bin liners, 
a fracas took place during which what he described as a wrestling 
match took place, In his evidence in chief, the husband stated 
that halfway up the stairs he had pinned the bsq to the wall with 
his kn�e and had a wrestling match during which he twisted her 
round after which she ran downstairs, He did not say whether the 
children were present, 

In cross-examination he denied that he had pushed his wife 
downstairs; or that when she had got to the bottom she had fallen 
on N 

Again, although the wife in cross-examination referred to 
having __ been pushed downstairs on one occasion, she choee not to 
lead evidence on this point, and we accept the evidence of the 
husband as to what happened, 

' 

This incident developed into another one, to which we will 
come in due course, involving the wife's parents, 

Distressing though these scenes were, and provoked as no 
doubt both the parties were one with another, we note that on 
three occasions, on his own evidence, the husband was prepared to 
grapple with and on one ·of �he occasions strike his wife1 on a 
fourth he appears to have used N as a shield, holding her in 
his arms during the fracas. 

These incidents were brought to an end, for a time, by the 
ouster injunction obtained by the husband in mid-October w-hich led 
to the previous proceedings which terminated, temporarily at 

·1eaat, with the finding of 27th January, 1992.

There then followed a whole litany of complaints against the 
wife• s family. 
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On the husband's evidence, quite apart from their general 
oharacter, about which he had a good ,deal to say, he makes 
co�plaint of a series of assaults by them, 

These appa�ently followed a telephone conversation between 
the wife and her mo�her on 10th August, when it seems that the 
wife, whose conversa�ion was being taped, said to her mother that 
the husband needs a'good sort out; to whioh her mother'replied 
that he would get one soon, 

Foilow!ng the incident of 21st August, 1991, described above, 
the policewoman who had been called, persuaded the wife to allow 
the husband to aee the children. Some time after the wife's 
mother and sister �rrived. In the course of what the husband 
describes as a oonversation, with the children present, he claims 
that he was assaulted by both Mrs. A his sister-in-law, and 
by hie mother-in-law. 

Be Claimed that the assault was ·U·nprovoked ,,and· no· evidence 
was le'd to contradict this, 

This was followed, he said, by the appeai:at1oe of· Mr. A 
�n 26th August, who, upset according .to the hu$band by 

statements made to him by N for which the husband detdf!ld 
responsibility, and about him by the huaband, came into the house 
1n the evening and p�oceeded to punch the husband round the head 
whilst he, the husband, waa seated. 

The husband di� not call the police, although in his 
evidence, he said that, ·in terms, Mr. A had invited him to do 
so. During the assault the wife, he said, sat in her chair and 
watched, .saying nothing, 

. Yet another incident took, plaoe immediately following that of 
23rd September, which we have described above, when the wife's 
parents arrived and her mother immediately began to set about him, 
whilst his wife held his hair. To add to the confusion his 
father-in-law came· and struck him while he was held. The whole 
incident he 'thought lasted obout two minutes, 

He then turned to his wife's and her family's financial 
competence and cha�aoter, ( 

, I 

h . , · His wi:fe, he said, simply cannot manage mo�ey, When t ey 
first met she was working, but owed, inter alia, arrears of £3,000 
for Income Tax. Me helped her to repay these, but this, he said, 
did not solve the problem for by the summer of 1991 she came to 
him to tell him that she was some £3,�00 in debt, despite having a 

'monthly allowance for houseke�ping of £623 for g�oceriee and 
children's clothing. According to the husband he paid everything 
else - rates, telephone and so forth - except the milk bill, 
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· In addition she was then earning £1PO per month as a part­
time barmaid, 

The laxgest debt (£870) was a new television and video whioh 
was bought, with his knowledge in March, 1991. He raised, ha 
said, no objection but made it clear that he could not afford to 
�eplaoe the one they had already, but that if she oould - she had 
just had her annual rise - he would have no objection, Only a few 
weeks later, she came to him with the list. Her attitude to 
money, he said, was that if she wanted something she would have it 
it�eapective of whether she could afford it. 

This and the other debts fi9uted in a noti�e to admit 
evidence, served by the husband, The wife admitted them but 
averred that they rere incurred with the full knowledge and 
consent of th� husba�d and for the general benefit of the family, 
that the huspand himself had d�bta. 9�. 9v.er £3., 00Q. and· that both 
paxties were and always had been ependth%ifta. 

In evidence in chief, the husband chose to deal with only the 
first of these allegations, stating that although the articles may· 
have been useful, they were simply not in .a pos�ti�n to make 
purchaa�s., bearing in mind the housekeeping allowance, 

We may, perhaps, add that his counsel specifically refrained 
from asking the husband about the allegation that he was a 
spendthrift, 

He was, however, strongly cross-examined a& to his financial 
abilities. 

He claimed only to have beoome aware of the extent of the 
wife's iiabilities in May, 1991, and this despite his speaking 
almost �onthly to her :ega�ding her affairs, her account at 
HBl'l'lhros'or her wanting an advance on next month's houeekeeping 
because she was overspent, 

In not.ing this, we bear in mind that the housekeeping 
allowance was foi: :food and child:r·en' 111 oloth;ing and that he· paid 
all othe:r expenses, Bow he thought an allowanoe which he thought 
was adequate to manage for food and clothing would st%etch to a 
new television and video was not ma.de clear to ua; nor as to w�y, 
given the wife's past debt p�oblems, he had not made an active 
enquiry 

. As to his financial competence, he had always, he said, met 
hie liabilities as they fell due. He .immediately modified this 
statement, by saying that thia was not always from his normal 
'income as there wae an occasion at the end of June, 1991, when it 
was neoessary for him to ask his ·parents for what he desc�ibed as 
a bridging facility of £1,000 for some 10 days, pending the sale 
of some shares in Hart\b�os Bank which he had anticipated would, but 
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which did not, occut before his mo�tqage interest was due, In 
1ubaequent evidence he stated that he had not yet repaid his 
parents. This does not appear to be the only loan received from 
his parents as they have lent him altogether £4,000 in several 
tranches, He had failed to mention this in the affidavit to which 
we will refer below, as he considered this to be family support 
r.athei: than a loan. He should repay it but there 'would be no
pre�su2:e on him if he oould not do eo. 'rn passing we note that
his parents are to receive £3,500 out of the proceeds of the sale
of the property.

He was asked about a loan made by a Mrs. K. We were not 
preoisely clea� as �o the detaila but we noted, first, that he 
looked extremely uncomfortable when asked; an�, second; that the 
loan was made to one of his banking customers whom the bank would 
not help, which the Court %egards aa curious behaviour to say the 
least for a bank officer in a responsible position. This was in 
effect conceded by the husband when he stated that he believed 
that the banlc would not· be particularly happy 'but· that they did 
not know, then or.later. 

He is now behind in his' mortgage :t:epayment t'o Hambros, having 
paid of� the arrears of at least two outatandinq quarters with a 
further share sale and the surrender of an insurance policy, He 
is not in a position to piy the current interest: and it was, ha 
averted, to a greater degree the wife's fault. She had overspent 
in August, 1991, and he thought that she had spent £1,300-£lr400 
in that month. 

However, he oeased to pay maintenance to the wife after she 
left. the matrimonial home in 1991, although he gave her £100-£200 
at C�ristmaa.on the understanding ahe would look fo� work. This 
continued between the end of January and the end of April, 1992, 
when he paid, he said, �1l the bills relating to the houae, and 
the wife was buying fooa for herself and the children. The only 
reason �he did this was that she had told him that she would be 
responsible, 

He denied that he had at any time refuse�� request from his 
wife for assistance, but agreed that he knew· she was in �•ceipt of 
weifare. Asked why he had not offered money in these 
oircurnstances, he replieq'th�t he knew that h& would have to repay 
it in the end. since she left, he said, she had not appxoached 
him-and he had not offered her anything. He recog:nised, he said, 
his obligations to his wife and his children and tqok them very 
seriously indeed. Asked when he intended to start, he replied 
that realistically it would be when the house is sold artd his 
financial attairs settled,. after which he ,said that if he had bee� 
·approached he would have done what he couldt that the need only
arose since the end of Apxil when she took the children from the
house, that if she was unable to provide she would have asked{
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and finally that if she failed and they suffered he would hold her 
responsible. 

As he stopped paying her maintenance from September onwa�ds 
and was to have several more months et the bank, this seemed a 
curious assertion; artd if it were correct, we find it even more 
strange that, in the financi�l situation in which he found himaelf 
he ehould - if aa he asserted he was not faced with an ultimatum 
by the bank - have chosen to resign. 

Be admitted paying the private detective, who arranged for 
the telephone to be recorded, £1,000: ,though given the state of 
the ma.rriage and the feelings of the parties at the time it .:Ls 
hard to criticise this expendit�r•, 

In cross-examination, an uneworn affidavit, p%epared for 
other proceedings, was put to hi� and accepted by him as being a 
faix and a'ccurate statement. "of his affa1ra at late- 'December t 1991, 

Had he been able to include the income of the house lodger, 
then in normal circumstances his income would have equalled his 
expenditure, 

He wa$ closely examined on this affidavit, ln addition to 
the omission of hi� parents' loan, mentioned abov�, he made 
certain othe� admissions. 

First, he agreed that .:J> Ltd. (the 
cleaning company) in which he has a one-third beneficial 

interest (his brother having two-thirds) has a bank loan which 
today, probably stands at £4,500 1 and has an agreed overdratt 
facility of £2,000. The affidavit declar�d that his intel:'est in 
the company was 50 per cent which he dealt with by stating that 
his brother would be happy for him to have a SO per cent interest, 

He had, he eaid, guaranteed the o�mpariy's bo�rowings and was 
the sole guarantor. Although he.conceded that the balance sheet 
of the company as at 31st January, 1992, ehews a loss of £2,000 he 
was not aware of the position when he prepared affidavit, a

curious assertion we find for someone of hia financial experienoe 
and expertisa. He had not included it as a contin;ent liability 
in his affidavit as he_consid,red that, at that time, there was no 
possibility of a forced sale. We note, however, that t�e 
affidavit refers to the company in rather more positive texms as 
having no net asset value. 

Second, some £2,000 of the loan· of £3,500 from his parents 
(which, as we have mentioned above, is apparently to be repaid out 
of the joint auets) was inveeted in ]) Ltd. 
In addition the husbJnd has made se�eral other payments to or fo� 
the benefit of the company or his interest therein •. 

' ,·:•·1 
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When the parties borrowed £34,400 from Hambros Bank to make 
extensions to the property� a loan which was secured on the 
jointly owned property and for the repayment of which both parties 
are liable, the husband used £1,000 of this sum towards the 

expenses of inooxporating I-./ Ltd. Although 
he agreed that the �ife had a liability to the bank, he denied 
that she had, as a result of these monies being used, any interest 
in the company, If she made a claim he would resist it. Although 
he claimed to have made the w!fe iw�r8 of his overall intentions 
regarding the company he had neither asked fo� her permission nor 
told her that it. would cost £1,000 to set the company up. 

He was further pressed on payments made to and oonoexning the 
company. It appears that, fo� the previous company in England, a 

loan of £1,000 waa made to a former partnex, a Mr. ,=-· , and that 
this ha� not been repaid. This was not the only payment, as a 
aeries of other payments, totalling some £1,785 were taken from 
the parties' joint account �nd used for the benefit of the 
company. 

We found it unsatisfactory that these details had to be 
extracted from the husband and were not included in this form in 
the afiidavit, as even though it remained unsworn it had, it 

appeared, been produced for the putpoae of the proceedings. 

Thizd, he was examined with regard to hie oredit ca�d 
obligations, and a loan to Barclays Bank plc. 

At the date of the affidavit there was a liability of £4,838 
owed to Barclays Bank plc. This h�d arisen because, in 1988, the 
husband had ha.d a gold card.facility which entitled him to a 
£10,000 overdraft, which he drew to the full, speculating with 

£.5,000 on the stockmarket, a loan.of £2,,700 to Mr. and Mrs. A 
and employing the rest on hou·se\lold living when the wife had to 
cease work with a loss of income of £9 1 000 per annum. He was not 
greatly concerned because he had been admitted to a profit sharing 
scheme at Hambros and, once again, as with the loan from his 
parents, had used this �s a form of bridging facility, �he 
overdraft was convefted to a loan in April, 1990, and has· been 
steadilr repaid evef .since. If he had not used the c�rd, they 
would have had to :reduce, their standard of livinq. Although he 
aqreed that what is borrow�d must be repaid, he did not rega:cd 
this as an unsound oourse of actiont whilst the purchase of 
shares qn borrowed money was not a gamble but a,oaloulated and 
reasonable risk. · 

Apart ·from this there were the three cheque cards and it was 
perfectly clear, f�om a schedule produced by the husband that 

'these three accounts (totalling in December 1991 some £4,045) had 
been up to their limits since at least Peoember, 1988, and the 
limit.for Access having been raised in 1991 the amount owing 
immediately rose to the new limit. He thought when pressed that 
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he was paying interest at 21t per annum on these three accounts, a 
statement whioh conflicted with one made earlier that it was 
neai::er 30% per annum,

We note that the amount owed on the$e four- accounts in 
December, 1988 was t13,586, and despite having received £2,500 
from the sale of tHe shares he had bought for £5,000 and the 
xepayment of £2,700 from Mr. and Mrs. A , viz. £5,200, the four 
accounts still totalled £8,884 in December, 1991, despite the high 
rate of interest whioh is charged on such aocounta. In making 
this calculation we have deliberately omitted items such as the 
£3,400 reoeived from the Hambros share sale, and loans fxom the 
husband;s parents as these were not st�ted to be telated expressly 
to these accounts. 

Fourth, it appeared that the flat was re-let on 9th December, 
1991, The new tenant paid a deposit of £500 and although this w�s 
not his money he (th• husband) paid away £380 to the previoue 
tenant and u�ed. tl 2.0 .. as income;• He failed to declare this 
liability in his affidavit. 

we should say that we agree with his admission,that the 
affidavit gives an untrue picture, especially with regard to the 
liabilities (rather than the assets), We wou1d add that all in 
all 'the.affidavit with its irnpexfections and, for whatever reason, 
his subsequent depar�ure from the bank, shew the husband to be far 
from a prudent householder carefully husbanding hie resources but 
one who is prepared �o spend or risk money which he does not have 
or is not yet to hand to maintain his style of _living, 

Furthermore, the husband made it quite plain that he i@

addicted to gambling, mainly on horses whioh are hie passion. 

BiG gambling would appear .to have followed a regular pattern, 
He admitted going to the betting shop perhaps three times per 
week, twide in a lunch hour and for an hour or so on a Saturday 
afternoon. 

The wife's vie� of the time spent was �t variance with·that 
of tha husband. 

The httsband estimated the net cost to him at perhaps £20 per 
week with a weekly turnove·r, of £100 or so and an avexage bet of 
perhaps £5, A good "fin might be pei::haps £.200. If�· won he would 
give his wife 10\ (t�e going rate) and either pay a bill with the 
balance or keep !t ln cash to save d�awing. He gave it up, he 
told the Court, between August, 1991, and February, 1992, but has 
now restarted, though he does not go to the betting shop at 
p�esent on a Saturday afternoon if be has the children with him. 

It may not �e an expensive hobby but we are satisfied that' 
the husband ia an habitual gambler, and moreover one who is 
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prepared to go on gambling despite the critical financial 
situation in which he now finds himself. 

,In these ciroumstanoee we have to say that the court 
disagrees with his assertion that his p�esent admitted insolvency 
is aa a result of his wife's •otions. The wife in her crosa­
a�amination made the point that whereas her over-spending wae on 
the house and the children, that of the husband - astronomical she 
thought fo;r: a Bank Manager - wu spent on gambling or for items 
for which he could not account.

T�e wife in her admissions claimed that both are spendthrift, 
So far as the husband is concerned we find this to be clearly ao. 

In her evidence-in-chief, however, the wifa'stated th4t she 
was now shewing a greater financial rectitude in that although she 
wa$ not paying oft previous debts incurred with credit cards, she 
was now txying to., and succeeding in/ bringing hEir current affairs 
into ordex, meeting her rent and other cuxrent debts as they fell 
due·. She had borrowed no further money since moving into her 
present accoil'lm.Qdation, and this despite receiving no help from the 
husband. She was cross-examined on these assertions when she 
maintained them and added tha� before she incurred her hire 
purchase liabilities for the oar, and the carpet, she had made a 
full admission to the finance company, 

We.find no evidence which tends to shew that she is not now 
adopting a p%oper and sensible approach to hex finances. 

As to he:c family, the husband claimed that ,her father had 
received a prison sentence for fraud and produced evidence that 
her sister and brother-in-law, Mr. and Mrs. , � have frequently, 
in the last 18 month�, been successfully sued for debts, which in 
the ciroumstanoes of the fam:l.ly, appear to be substantial. We 
should, perhap$, add here that her father's conviction was stated 
to be in 1985, and no evidence was led that the husband was 
ignorant of this at the tiine of the marriage. 

In cross-eKa.mination, the husband modified his evide�ce· and
claimed that he had only mentioned his fathar�in-law•a conviction
to explain why his mother-in-law told her husband not

.
to get

involved in the assault of the 23rd Septemb�r.

We should say that it ia the wife's character which primarily 
concerns us, rathe� than that of her immediate family: although 
of cou'rse if there is to be a. close aSBociation, or the wife is to 
be much infl�enced by them this.muet.assume some importance.

Similarly, evidence was given of the wife's conviction in 
· 1983 of several driving offences leading to a d.1squalification.
Again, no evidence was led that the husband was ignorant of this
when the parties married.
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The husband when asked in e�amlnation-in-chief to describe 
the wif$'S honesty, stated that he thought that, ultimately aho 
was honest, cut immediately qualified this by saying that if it 
suited her to tell lies then she would be prepared to do so. He 
instanced several admitted lies with regard to her relationship 
with Mz. C 11 apd also that she has, moxe recently, signed a 
false deelaration for money. 

There are two instances where the wife lied about her 
relationship with M�. C , The first and in our view the most

important by far is that the wife committed perjury in the earlier 
proceedinqs in October, 1991, when she denied, before the Inferior 
Number, having committed adultery with Mr. C This was 
admitted by the wife, her excuse, which she gave in her evidence 
in chief being that she had told a lie because she was soared and 

I 
. 

had thought that if she had committed adultery, she would have the 
ohildien taken away from her: but that she had admitted it when 
she went back into Court, 

. The second, and in our view muoh the less important ·w.ere two 
in.stances where the husband claimed, in effect that the wife had 
bee� less than frank on oath as to the extent of her relationship 
with Mr. c· It is claimed that: tha wife stated in an 
affidavit that she had not seen Mr. C _ since the 14th Au;ust, 
b1,it was found in the Priory Inn with Mr, C and the children 
on 17th August. On c.co�a-examination 11 foundu was reduced, on the 
evidence before ust to seeing both the wife's and Mr. C 's 
car there and seeing the wife leave, 

It·was claimed by counsel for the husband, and admitted by
counsel !or the wife that the Court in the previous proceedings, 
or at any rate the President of that Court, had declared itself to 
be satisfied that the wife was a liar, 

The:ce then followed an assertion by the husband that the wife 
had signed· a false declaration for money, 

The witnees who waa d�lled to substantiate this very serious 
allegation was Miss, f> 

She had,· she said, known the wite for a long time, but had, 
in more recent years, just drifted away from her end the husband 
whom she had met and whom she described as a sociable, generous, 
nice.person 

. Asked to tell the court wh�t she knew of the false 
declaration, she replied that she had got her alle;ation 
completely wrong. She had indeed thought that the wife had signed 
a false declaration and had received money for it, but accepted 
befo�e ua that she had got the story all wrong. 
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ln oross-examination the wife was asked apout this and denied 
having made a false declaration. There is thus no evidence to 
support this allegation which therefore falls to the ground. 

Furthermore, he claims, that the wife has no oonoern for the 
children's spiritual welfa�e and does not believe in God, 
Although he had suggested they should go to Church aftex they were 
marr�ed, she would not make the effort to do so, 

Asked to oommertt on a letter from the Rev. Nicol to the 
effect that since March, 1992, a month during which she waa at the 
matrimonial home the wife and children were re9ular members of the 
congreg�tion of the Church of Scotland the husband �ommented, in 
evidence in chief that clearly at the present time she is prepared 
to make the effort for the children to attend and that she has no 
objeotion to religious instruotion, but that when it becomes too 
much ot a chore she may not take them, In his view, she was 
making an·effoxt to counter a negative feature a9ainst her. 

,. In. ctoss-axamina.tion, he agreed that although he knew, from 
N - ,, that the childten were go.1.ng to Sunday School, he did not 

take them when he had them on a Sunday. Asked why he did not find 
out where they were going, he replied, in part that he did not 
feel it'was in their interests to make a show by taking them to 
another Church. Asked whether it waa not in the children's 
interests to go, he stated that because of the amount of change 
they had had, and their ages he felt it better to leave !t over 
until the question of custody, oare and control had been sorted 
out. Nonetheless, this he said, waB something he would wish to 
encourage regardless of the wif9, 

In assessing this evidence we bear in mind the husband's 
earlier statement that he was not, himself, a regular churchgoer, 

It was further put to hiM in oross-examination that the wife 
went to House Communion with a n&ighbour. Be knew �othing of 
this. Asked if he knew tbat the wife sang in oc-.- I Church 
Choir prio� to marriage, he stAted that he �ememb•red her saying 
she had sung in a Church Choir, as he had done. His wif�, he 

'said, was never a churchgoer when he knew her1 The wife's 
evidence did not oome up to the expectations aroused by this line 

· of areas-examination. She stated that she had twice whilst at
l.n� �m,l

"I 
ha"';e.been to Rouse Communion, and had been to Sunday Sohool

herse!?, sung in � Church Choir b�tween the ages

of 13-15 or thereabouts and had been aonU.:cmed. It was hardly
surprising that the husband was as vague or as ignorant as he
stated,

On the other hand, she gave evidence that she is now a 
regular Churchgoer and that her regular attendance there is a 
source of comfort to her. On each occasion, she says, someone' 
cornea and speaks to he�. In addition the children go on alternate 
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weeks to Sunday School and have settled in well,• Although we have 
no doubt but that this attendance is of recent origin, we are

equally in no doubt but that it is of great benefit to the .family· 
as a whole, 

There then followed a series of allegations arising from the 
notice to admit facts arising from the earlier hearing. 

Some of these have bean oovend already, -but the first, and 
most serious, is that the wife, on her return home, ignored the 
orqer of the Court made when she was permitted to return when it 
suited her to do so, 

We do not, of course, know the full reasons which lay behind 
the Court's finding: but we should say, before considering this 
evidence that, in view of the state of feeling which clearly 
existed during the summer of 1991, an order permitting the parties 
to live together in the same ho�se with the children, was, we 

· ·bel_ieve, bound to place very-- o-onsiderabl·e· pressure and strain on
the parties,

The husband's prescription for dealing with this period,
which was bound to be difficult, was before she returned to the
house to set down ground rules in order, he said, to reduce
friction.

Asked by the Court whether he had asked his wife about these
ground rules, he replied that he had simply set them down saying
what he wanted. They were, he said, no different to the
arrangements prior 'to her leaving the house. Had she behaved
herself and not caused tensions in the house she could have stayed
at the matrimonial home.

Among the rules was that· he would bathe the children; To
this, he said, she agreed; and he went so far as to complain that
when on· a couple of occasions he had not returned as early as

usual, his wife had not used her discretion and bathed the
children.

We find that this imposition o·f rules, without discussion
even after so long a cas� and the inevitable feeling between the
parties was bound to be provocative and to cause tension from
which the children would suffer,

one of the tape recordings played to us ttiade in this instance
by the wife in February/March, 1992, demonstrated precisely this
point. Although we realise that it was made without the knowledge
of the husband we nohetheless wish to add in passing, that in our
·view, it shews the wife as being well in control of the children
and the main person who "'as dealing with them and to whom they_
turned.
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As we say, complaint is made by both sides of the conduct of 
the other. The husband' e complaint may ba summari.se<i as being 
that his wife is quite careless of any order of the court and that 
her conduct on her return supports the assertion that she treats 
with contempt any restraints imposed by law on her behaviour, and 
that she went out Of her way by her language and behaviour to 
provoke him. 

The incidents put before us by the husband are several. In 
our view, they range fro� the petty to the serious, though no 
doubt they weighed heavily on the nerves of the parties who had 
just endured 32 days· in Court hearing an interlocutory 
application, 

We. turn first to the allegation that the wife is careless of 
the Orders of the Court. 

,, 

Compla"int ·is made that she approached the .matr;Lmonial home 
while injuncted from so doing.. It appears to be accepted that she 
remained outside in a oar whilst her sister collected the 
cihildren, 

Th� second and much more serious, given the precise terms· of 
the injunction,, is that the wife admitted telling the Managing 
Director and another Officer that the bank was at risk in 
employing the husband whom she described as, and fully believed to 
be, a compulsive gambler. 

' ,. 

His opinion was that she did this in order to put him in a 
weak position financially as this would affect his ability to look 
after the children if he obtained custody: for if he did, he 
would need a housekeeper, whilst it would be easier for her to 
obtain States' acoommodation, However, it does not appear to have 
lost the husband his employment-. 

In cross-examination the husband was pressed as to why he had 
left what was clearly a good position at Hambros, 

He maintained that the relationship, had been seve-rely 
· affected because the wife had alleged that he had acted in an
underhand manner in a recovery situation (in which the bank was
involved) and had tried to get a busineas at an undervalue, taking
advantage of his position. Although he maintained that this was
untrue the ,result, he said, was that his relationship with the
bank had been eroded and he 'had resigned. He denied that he had
been given an ultimatum to resign or be dismissed.

Having said that, he ag�eed that he had discussed the 
position with the Managing Director before giving notice, and had 

. had the opportunity of 1 putting his own side of the story, 
including, as we understand it, the assertion that what his wife 
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had sald wa$ untrue. He believed that his explanation had been 
accepted by the bank. 

Noneth$les&, despite thia acceptance he had come to th• 
conclusion that their confidence and the relation1hip had 
definitely been affected, 

We have to say that we find his explanation totally 
implausible. 

Had the wife made unfounded allegations, which the husband 
was able to re£ute, we can see no �eason why he should contemplate 
leaving the bank, or why such allegations, made by a wife in a 
failing mar�iage should induce him to do 10, Furthermore, given 
the general situation, both in the martiage, and in the wider 
business world, tt was an extraordinary step to take voluntarily. 

This was the more so, because, his business of cleaning : 
brings i:n, tie to·ld us, £1, ooo· t:o £1,500 per ·1nonth g::ou; 

he has the income from the flatlet until the matrimonial home is 
sold, or, as seems poasible, repQsieased, whilst hie mortgage 
broking business has, so far,·brought in nothing. 

�here were also, he olaimed, two instances of assaults in 
defiance of the injunction. The first was an allegation that when 
he was leaving the house at 8.30 a.m. on 20th February, 1992, with 
the children, the wife slammed the door shut on his b�ck, On his

own evidence, the husband went back into the house �nd pushed his 
wife on the shoulder and said that he told her never to·do it 
again, In cross-examination he agreed that he became annoyed and 
did lose his temper, 

No evidence as to this was tendered by the wife, and we 
accept the husband's evidence.· 

· The second followed on 24th �pril, 1992, and clearly 
precipitated the wife's departure from the matrimonial home,

According to the husband, the wife had been systematically· 
stripping the lounge of personal effeots,-in particular pictures 

·of the children which had been hanging on the walls, oxnaments,
compaet·discs, scatter cu�hions, and other items. On the evening
df 23rd April, having notic�d that these were missing he stated
that he asked the wife to return them and gave her 24 houra to do
so thxeatening to go to her room and retrieve, in_particular, it
would.seem, the scatter cushions.

The fo11ow1n9 evening., he said, he xeturned home to find that 
nothing had beer replaced. The wife being upstairs in the 
bedroom, he knocked on her door th�eatening that if· ahe di.d not 
return the items in half an hour he would drill out the lock of 
her door, He then got the drill and switched it on. It was put 
to him in cross-examination that this was provocative and 
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confrontational, to which he firat �•plied that he was trying to 
let _he:i:: know he wae not joking and would do as he said he would 
do. 'Pressed on this, he agreed it was confrontational, but 
claimed that he had been provoked. Asked why be had not asked his 
lawy$� to write as he had done before, he replied that ha did not 
expect a confrontation. He added, as an afterthought, that if he 
had drilled the lock, then his wife would no longer have been able 
to lo�k her door, at least until she had found a locksmith. He 
started it, he said, ,without a bit. 

He waa asked if his wife had said "Don't threaten me". Be 
first replied that a�e had not used that particular phrase;, that 
she had given him the impxession that she would not compiy; that 
he could not reoall spe�ifically: and that he beli�ved she did 
not say so apeoifioally. 

I , !1,'l /I',� , ' • , ! J'11 � ,,, 1 

On his account, the wife then came out of th$ bedroom saying, 
according to the husband, •If you are going to do it in half an 
hour's time, you may as well do it now", to which he replied 
"Fine, O.K., I will". 

When she went to go back into the room and t�ied to slam the 
door on him, he fo11owed her and pushed into the room past her. 
He denied striking her: she did not, he said, swear or hold her

face or complain that he had hit her, but just turned and left the 
room. 

Shewn a police photograph taken, we were told, on 26th April 
which ahewed bruising. under the wife's left eye and on. her upper 
left arm, the husband replied that he did not believe he caused 
the b%uise. She might, h� thought, have struck her face with her 
own hand. He was, h� admitted, annoyed. 

He then began to clear the items from the room whilst aha 
went off to telephone, Whilst he did this, he could overhear her 
telling someone she bad b�en assaulted. She was not, he said, in 
a state of distress when he saw he� or when she was telephoning. 
She was annoyeQ 1:;,ut not screaming, ahoutiqg, or crying but, ha put 
it, just telling fibs, 

He continued to c1ear the oupboards in he� room and when she 
started to pull at his arms, he reminded he� of the injunction 
preventing her from roolesting him, A fracas, seemingly �ery 
similar to those we have detailed above then took place during 
which the husband shook the wife off and took the photo album� 
downstairs. 

It was put to him that in acting as he had he was taking the 
law into his own hands, to which he replied that at the time, he 
had thought that no confrontation of this type was likely and that 
this only occurred when his wife came out of the �oom and provoked 
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him, It was she, he claimed, who had provoked him by removing the 
items. It was hie �esponse to her provocation over weeks. 

There was, he said, no threat of injury as he would not have 
used the drill on her, She knew, he said, that he was not 
aggressive or she would not have assaulted him in the past. 

The wife's aooount in examination-in-chief confirmed, in 
general, the husbanQ's evidence. His turning the drill on, she 
said, finished it off, by which we understood that this was for 
her the final straw. She went on to say that it was enough to 
scare anyone and frightened her to death, really. She felt 
frightened because of previous assaults as she had been punched 
and claimed to have been: pushed downstairs. She did not, she 
said, know what was coming next, nor did she wish the children to 
see it either. 

After her parents to whom she had telephoned arrived, the 
husband, she said, went berserk, 

In cros$-examination she freely admitted that, once again, 
she ,had been in contempt of the Coui::t order in :removing hia 
belongi�gs to her room, He had not, however, given her 24 hours 
notioe of removal but had merely said in evidence that he had, 
Sha was firm in her as·se:r:tion that the husband. had intended to hit 
her as he passedi he oould, she said, nave drilled the 1ock at 
any time and did not have to. wait for her to be in the room. As 
for his attitude, she was, she said·, frightened of him assaultirtg 
her, He had hit her on the back of the head previously, and her 
opinion was that he could be aggressive{£ he could not get his 
own way, and with the drill in his hanp he was, she thought, 
capable of anything, He frightened the life out of her. We 
accept her evidence that she was frightened, 

We have to say that even if he were provoked, as indeed we 
are sure he was, and was intended to be, the husband's conduct 
went far too far. 

Soon afterwards �olice Constables Perah��d and Breuilly·came 
to the doQr, Both these police offioe�s were oalled'to give

evidenoe. 

The Court was particula�ly·impreesad with the evidence of 
P.C. Perchard, the senior of the two officers.

He stated that the wife's bedroom was furnished more as a 
living room-than as a bedroom. When he saw the wife, her face �aa 
reddened, she was �till upset and gave the impression that she had 
suffered a traumatic experience. She had been crying but had 
suffered no physical injuries of any seriousness, an impression 
confirmed by P.C. Breuilly, who spent more time with her and who 
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stated that there was a slight reddening of the left eye and the 
left hand co.ne. of the mouth, 

Both Police Constables came to the conclusion that the wife's 
injuries, such as they were, were caused by the husband's efforts 
to retrieve the photos and that he had forced his entry for that 
purpose rather than to assault her. 

P,C, Perchard added that it was clea� that the domestic

situation waa very tense and difficult and that things had oome to 
a point whe.re t·he wife did not feel that she could live in a 
normal house sharing llituation with he:i: husband", It w•• not, of 
course, possible to make a total judgment on the domestic 
situation, which in his view did not oall for criminal 
proceedings. 

Re did confirm, however, that the husband had complained that 
the wife's behaviou�-�n removini the photos was unfair and 
provocative. 

The next day, tbe husband claimed, the wife iaid a complaint 
and he was a.rreated whilst with the children, who were left with a 
W,P.C, »e thought ttlat his wife was claiming she wa� apprehensive

that-he might assault her. Centenier Boschat, however, who seems 
to have been well appraised of the situation, ensured that he was 
not detained over the weekend and the matter would appear to have 
gone no further. 

The wife decided to remove herself from the house on the 
Monday morning. In her evid�nce-in-ohief and in oross­
e�amination, her account of this incident is that on the Saturday 
morning, the husband had again thxeatened that if she did not take 
everything downstairs he would.do the same again, so ehe wtnt to 
the police s.tation after which tha police came and took him away, 
She thought he was told not to·return again that weekend, 

It was following this incident that the wife removed to the 
Women's Refuge, a move which the husband mai�tained w�s made for 
'effect. When it waa put to him that she believed she was under 
threat, he disagreed, reiterated that she had made it for effect 
(to put presaure on the Housing Department and possibly on their 
advice) and had exaggerated the threat from him, 

The wife' s evidence (in chief and in croas-e:x'a:mination) was 
that both the police and the Housing Department had advised her to 
go to the Refuge. 

There are a aeries of other allegations, most of whioh in our 
view really relate to the marriage, Some .0£ them ahare common 
ground with the incidents above. There a�e �llegations, for 
example, that the wife attempted to throw a picture belonging to 



33 

the husband away, allegations and denials a� to the state of the 
marriage and the efforts made to save it and as to wbether the 
wife attempted to separate the children from their father •. Quite 
a number of them seek to cast doubt on the wife's veracity by 
chall&nging the evidence which she gave in previous proceedings,
these being separate from her admission of perjury with regard to 
her relationship with Mt-. C 

There are a series of ad.Missions, which wa have to.take into 
account where the wife admits being in contempt of Court. These 
include as the moat serious the approach to Hambros and the 
removal· of the belongings which precipitated the final scene on 
24th Apxil, 1992. We need not, we feel, detail these at length as 
many of them are already canvassed in the evidence. 

What is clear from the admisaione is that the wife admits 
that the husband is a loving, if not a devoted father (in the 
sense of being unreliable) but being perfectly adept at the usual 
domeetic chor.e,s iovp,l,vin9 young ohiJ..d.ren. In her, evidence in 
chief mhe thought he aoted with them like a roDot with np feelings 
whatsoever. Children, she aaid, need to be cuddled. ae was 
though, she oonoeded, a loving father in his own way, 

To 'complete the hu1:1band' s case, there ·were minor allegations 
which shewed only too clea�ly the state of the parties'
relationship, if it can be· so termed, after the wife �etu�ned to 
the matrimonial horne in February, 1992, until she left it again on 
27th April, 1992,

It was plain �o us ,that the husband relied on the 
injunctions, maintained, or rather reimposed by the Court on 27th 
January, 1992, as ahewn by his claims of her slamming the door on 
him, and the struggle when retrieving the photographs. Wh�t was 
not so clear to us was the tolerance which he, in return, was 
prepared to extend to the wife in those circumstances. 

In addition, he now believes that the wife has formed an 
a8aociation wit� anolher man, We have dealt with her response to 
thia alleg�tion above. In ��oes-examination, he admitted that hs 

'had.himself formed alnew association with a lady, but in his case, 
had baen v�ry care�ul, ai we have stated above, �ot to make 
anything of it in front of the children, 

.Finally, and most importantly, it was put to. the wife that 
$he· had manipulated the situation (lt tbQ. fqmil

'f 
hatrit,.culminating i1'l 

the scene of 24th April simply in ordet'-"to put pressure on 
Housing: that ('I a.nd :r are the victims of this action and 
that she then sued to deprive the father of access, when he was, 
in terms, altogether the more suitable parent. Thie was met with 
a� indignant reaction from the wife who complained that the teason 
·:5 still wakes up as she does is because she waa put out of the
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house. She _is, and has been willing to give generous access: 
although in her life he doee not eKiat, in the children's he does, 

As part of hie evidence, the husband ad�uoed some video 
recordings. The3e shew the relationship which we had expected 
from the admissions of the wife, namely that the husband is a 
loving father, and, as reported in the report of the Child�en's 
0fUt:ec, the children respond well to him when they see him,_ He 
oalled a triend, Mz:, � , a hotelier, who stated that the 
husband brings the children round onoe or twice per week to the 
hotel to play with his son. He deacribed the husband's aptitude 
as very good, that he looks after the children well, that he is 
patient, not easily excitable and never heavy handed, We accept 
that evidence. Ha desoribe1 the children as to some extent 
insecure and both, but � in particular, as tending to cling, 
He had seen Mrs. Hart �ut believed that, althougb very pleasant, 
when she was speaking to him ahe was only doing so as a formality 
ae her mind waa already made �P-�. 

The husband was asked about the two reports, made by 
different Children's Officers. Not surprisingly, given their 
conclusions, he disagreea with them, He complains that Mrs. Hart, 
in pa�tieular, attempted, as he 1 put it, to compress five yea�s of 
marriage into 1 1 /, hours, and merely followed the report of Mr. 
Taylor. In pat-tio\llar,. she was, he said, dismissive of his 
:request f 0:t.:' her to refer to Mrs. O and Miss , T 
who had, he said, evidence to provide of serious allegations as to

his wife's treatment of I\J. 

Miss '. . he told the Court, had provided quite 
serious allegations regarding the wife' s treatment of N On 
occasions she stated to him that ahe had arrived at the house, 
where she called quite frequently after the birth of rJ , 

until about 11/z - 2 years ago and. that she had seen that : N 
would be marked, sometimes on the face and eometim,s on the leg; 
and that the wife would admit that she had hit N sometimes 
with her hand and sometimes with a slipper, 

In c:ose-examination, the husband who, after all had ;iven 
evidence that he regularly bathed the children when smail, 
confirmed his earlier evidence that he did not pa:rtioularly e:ee 
evidence of this, to his recollection, ,but telt that his wife was 
oeing agg�essiv$ to t( P:reaaed, he again confirmed that he 
did not see serious marks on her when ahe was very young. 

Mies � a mother of three children, the 
youngest of whom waa born at about the aame time as rv 

. stated that she met the wife in the maternity unit where she found 
her uppity wtth staff, and giving her husband a lot of trouble and 
anguish when he called, apparently under the impression that he 
was seeing someone el�e. 
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After the wife raturned home, dne or the other lady 
telephone, If the wife we�e having a rough w6ek with /V 
would build up to three or four times per week; or in a fair 
three times a.nd she might possibly visit 1:1,Q. famil'I' horn" twice 
week, ...J 

would 
, it 
week 
in a 

The wife had had no family support when the witness knew her. 
She had not seen her recently. They fel_l out about 18 months ago 
over what the witness felt was a breach of confidence by the wife. 

Quite frequently she said the wife would ring her and say she 
had had a te:rrible slee.pless niqht and that f'/, . had cried all 
night, a statement not, aa we recall, confirmed by the husband in 
his evidence, She often rang between B a,m, and 10 a,m. and found 

N crying on most occasions. She would.take her three 
children with her, and her eldest daughter would do th·e wife' a 
ironingt as she found it difficult to cope with the household 
chores. 

'She, unlike the husband, had seen a slipper mark on �er faoe, 
The wiie, she sa.id·, was i:ough with ·, N , but what really upset 
the witness moot, she said, was mealtimes. She dreaded them. lf 
.. N , aged two/t�ree years did not eat her meal she would be 
slapped and aent upetairs after 20/30 minutes an� be presented 
with the food at the next meal. 

On being pressed she conceded that the marks were fading when 
she left. It was not the way ahe would bring up her child. 

As for the husband whom she saw from time to time, she 
considered the wife to be a very lucky lady: he was, ehe said, 
just the sa�t of dad she would have liked to have had for her 
little child. Unlike the wife (although she was lovely) he was a 
natural father, In spite of her stated con�ern, she had not, 
although she had discussed it, thought it necessary to tell the 
authorities, no� as far as we understood it, at the time, the 
husband� 

She agreed that she had now falle� out with the wife over 
what she described as a breach of confidence, 

Although she denied that her evidence was coloured by her 
l�ok of feeling for the wife, we formed the impression that the

circwnstances of the rift had left a good deal of feeling between
the ladies. we, therefore, approached her evidence with some
caution,

In her examination-in-chief, the wife made, in effect, a 
straight denial of Mias T� eviden�e: and in 
particular claimed (as had the hueband) that N was not 
really a difticult child but really rather ea&y and had s1ept all 
night at five weeks, She admitted that Miss \ had 
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called, but not aa often noi for so long aa she had claimed,
to striking · N , she claimed. that Miu ·1

As 

not telling the truth; and neither was she telling the 
to what happened at meal times. Almost the only point 
her evidenoe agreed with·that of Miss T
concerning the circumstances in which they fell out, 

was 
truth a.s 
on which 
was that 

In c:rou-examinati'on she repeated her denials, If she st�uok 
tha child:ren she would slap them on the legs or the botto�: and 
if she had gone too far would have telephoned her mother not Miss 

·,: whom she oatego:ri,ed as not liking her, or as 
having a personal vendetta aqainst her. She would not have struck 

N · for wetting herself, As for her evidence regardiQg meal 
times, she said that although, in the early days Miss T

had called on a fairly regular basis, perhaps once or
twioe a we•k, and although she may have been there at lunch time, 
she was never there at tea time ... As tor her �lle�ation that she 
had no family eupport, her sister·,· she said, was often there 
around lunch time, 

Furthe� doubt was· thxown on Miss 
by the evidence 0£ her daughter, Miss 
not, she told us, get on at all well 
neither did nor does like the wife. 

/5' 
5 T 
with her mot�er; 

evidence, 
She did 
and she 

Her version of events at� fami·� h:irm. differed mai;�edly from 
that of her mother. She had not seen either party to the case· 
for 4 1/2 years. She thought the father made a pr•tty good dad and 
would have wished to be with him, beoause at the time N did 
seem to be better with the fathe�, but there was a new baby and 
jealous feelings can arise. 

As to the wife's treatment of N 1 
she seemed to treat 

her very well, though after "J"" 1 s arrival she tended to ignore 
the older child. Before "J a.z:.rived N' · got every assistance 
for eating or goin9 to the lavatory, but after her sister arrived 
had to do it herself and grow up. She had, she said, seen the 
wife smack; t-' if she had done something w:cong ox if she were 
in danger of hurting herself, but not when N � s mothe:r had 
loet her tempe� with her, 

In cross-examination, she stated that they went around £0� 
less than one year: that Sh8 had done the ironing but only once 
or twice when badgered by her mother. She had rarely been there 
at meal times and never saw N slapped round· the faoe. When 
it was put to her that her mother had said that th• wife had 
al�pped N when ahe had not eaten her lunch, she first 
replied no, �nd then stated that her mother and tha wife did not 
get on, and, in texms, cast doubt on the.veracity of her mother's 
evidence. 
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We ag�ee with counsel for the husband who described Miss 
S T as a witness who seemed natural and without 

guiler and who seemed to mean what she said. 

We agree with counsel for the husband when he submits that
the evidence of Miss "T · , if accepted, would be of
very great weight and ha.ve a very oon.siderable influenoe on our 
decision. tt is therefo�e right to say at this point that we do 
not accept it and, without hesitation,' prefer that of the wite 
where it conflicts with that of Mias T

Evidence was also given.by Mrs. 0 who had, the 
husband explained, ar�ived at the house with a view to speaking to 
the wife on aacount of personal problems of her own and had 
instead spoken to him. In the oourse ot conversation, having 
mentioned to her that.he was having a custody battle for the 
ohildren and that the wife had phytioally and verbally abused 
them, she replied, "Yes, I know, I have seen it". Once she told 
him.,. )lav.ing Clon'le to the matrimoniaf home une8pectedly, beto:r;e � 
was born, N had come to Mrs, O� side, trembling so 
much that Mrs, O had offer$d to take her away for the day 
which she did. 

M:ra·. 0 was duly called to give evidence. She confirmed 
that she had indeed on one occasion offered to take N - who
i5 cloao in age to her own daughter.- home for lunch and that 

N had indeed slipped :tier hand into hers. She ( N ) did 
not hold it tight and if her hand trernbled it might have been on 
her (!aa. 0 's) account. 

She opined.that she rnight have said that the wife was a bit 
down and lonely after she had had N 1 and thought that as 
she was very upset herself, on account of her own personal 
problems, she might have come over the wrong way to the husband, 
She had, she said, agreed to speak to Mrs. Hart, the Child Care 
Officer, but had told the husband that, despite hie insistence, 
she really had not felt that ahe could help him, 

·The husband was then questioned as to, his views· on M�s.
Hart's report whieh recommends that tha wife be granted caxa and 
control of the children, with joint custody to both parents. She 

, had made the second report. He had seen her for 1-11/• hours at 
her office when she had tried to aram 5 years into 1 hour, It 
was, he said, a very disjointed meeting, He had another �eeting 
a�out a month later at ���Mi�hoMtthough there was a limitation 
on frankness as the <ihildren were the:ce, Thfl meeting lasted some 
11/2 hours, but he had received, he said, the distinct impression 
that by this time Mrs, Hart had reached her conclusions e,g, she 
had said that it i$ sometimes batter for the father not to have 
the children as the limited hours they have are more rewarding as 
t.here is no involvement in the drudgery (of bringing up children) • 
Furthe�more, she had said, at the first meeting, that she did not
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know why she h�d been asked to prepare the report aa the previous 
oftloer had been better qualified than heraalf, 

He had subsequently aent her a letter which he had been 
composing when they met, to which he had reoeived no response. In 
particular he complained that ehe had not been to see Mias 

T .: but that of course haa been remedied in these 
proceedings as she has given evidence before us. He agreed that 
he had seen the finished report but complained that she had not 
given him the opportunity to make and justify points, All she had 
done, he maint�ined, was to repeat the exercise carried ,out by Mr, 
'l'aylor. 

Mra. Bart, a part time Child Care Officer was called. In her 
evidence in chief ahe confirmed the conclusions in her report, and 
stat6d that einoe the report and pxior to the present hearing she 
had seen the wife �t her new aeoommodation t and had seen the 
"children again· in the pr"esenoe ol the husband and 6£ the wife, an"d ·. 

N also at school. The children were happy and settled as 
they �ere at the time she had written the report. 

S�e was subjected to a lengthy cxoes-examination, In 
particular she was pressed on the lengthy, and well-written letter 
the husband had sent her. 

It became perfeot,ly clear that she had seen a large number of 
witnesses, far more than was usual, some thirteen in all at the 
husband's request, the only witness whom she had not seen being 
Miss T. She agreed that were Mias T} 
evidence - to the effect that the wife was a less than capable 
mother - to have been substantiated this might have affected her 
judgment. She had not seen hei as time was pressing. 

The Court, however, hae seen"Miss T 

as we say, that her·evidence carries no weight, 
and finds, 

We do not think that we need to go through the cross­
examination in detail. It is sutticie�t to say, we believe, that 
Mrs, Hart did not read Mr, iaylor's report nor the previous orders 
of justice as she wished to make up bet own mind. As to the 
various points claimed by the husband she stated that she had not 
aet out his case as, having listened to botb partiea the situation 
as-the marriage bro�e up was clearly intolerable, She reiterated 
her conclusion that the children were very close to the mother and 
had a good relat�onship with the father. It was, she said, a 
ditferent xelationship: good with both, but being with their 
rnothex all the time, they needed theix father's full attention 
when he was with them, but when with the mother it. was clo�e and 
they did not need, as sha put it, to be crawling all ovar her. 

She agreed that the husband had given his opinion that the 
wife was not capable, but that all the people he auggeated she 
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should see had not actually bean able to eay that, Soth parties, 
sh� added, always find something horrible to say about the other. 

·She was then questioned on the husband's �onq letter, which
set out his position ia extenso, in very much the same way that it 
waa set out in his ev�dence, 

Dealing with the wife's financial competence, she was dealing 
with the here and now, and the wife's statements 1uqgestad that 
she wa1 now handling money well. 

She had taken at face value what bath had said, �s it was 
difficult to do otherwise. She had not felt it fai� to••• the 
wife's mother, the husband's parents being then out of the Island. 

She was pressed on the wife' a, family, but said that she had 
understood they were protecting a daughter. In particular her 
report was her opinion as ahe S!W it: she saw the wife as a 
oap�le mother whp oould ea.re for t�• cnildl:'en.. She. was trying to 
look at it with fxeah eyes, and had to make a judgment on what she 
saw during the time she was involved, 

She was heavily pressed but reiterated th&t with two little 
9irla, both very young, where the husband has two jobs, is a hard 
�orker, trying to set up businesses in a recession, and who would 

I • 

have to bring in a hou�ekeeper, and where the children have been 
through an awful lot, the wife who works part-time and can 
organise herself better for them is the person who should have 
car� and control, though the husband should have reasonable 
aooess, Even if the husband's case, which was put to her, were 
wholly proved, she waa still of t�e opinion that the wife was in 
this instance the best person to have care and cont�ol, · 

Obviously a report ot this. nature was part hearsay and part 
admissible evidence of wihat M:i:s. Hart had observed. She had 
clearly, in our view, placed considerabl$ weight on this latter 
aspect and. from what she had herself seen - as against her ·very 
considerable investigations (whiah did not di�agree with her 
conciusions} - Mas quite clear and oonfirme� and maintained·her 
opinion as exp�essed in the report. 

She was heavily criticiaed by counsel for the husband in his 
closing addzesa; and we feel it right to say that we found her 
evidence most impressive and were imp%essed also with the 
diligence an4 care which she took in preparing her report. 

As for �r. Taylor's report, he complained that it was made 
very quickly. 

It appeared from interviews he had held he had reoeived the 
impression that the wife was loyal and caring: and, to the 
greater part the husband would not disagree with that conclusion, 
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' 

;. 

his case being tounded on his view that the wife. ha1 shewn him 
that she _can lose control of the children and hence herself, so 
that the child:cen are at risk f:rom time t.o time. PVhat conoe.rned 
him, he said; was not what made her lose control but the fact that 
she did, He did not accept that the wife would be more rela�ed 
with.out him; because he (so he claimed) was very supportive of
both hie wife and the children. 

It is this concern which pe�suaded him he should have oa�e 
and control. lf he did, then in tha aho�t term hie pa:ents would 
assist him to create a stabl� envi�onment. If and when they were 
to �eturn to England the only help he wo�ld need would be a 
housekeeper fo� cleaning duties. His wife, he envisaged, would 
have access in the afternoons from time to ti�e, but he would 
object to staying access until the children were a little bit 
older, He thought tpis would be when they were about 5 years old 
when they would be old enough to advise if they were mistreated 
and.for the wife to be considered reliable.· .Be conceded, however-; 
that the·re· wa·s no evidence of mistr'eatment, since the wife left at 
the end of Ap:ril and stated that she was being supported on a 
regulax basis by he� family. This did not prevent him from making 
an application during the hearing (through his counsel) requesting 
that he should have staying access three nights per week. When 
the wife· counter-offered that staying access should not be on the 
night before a school day and that, as a coQdition, the huab�nd 
should xemain in the house overnight, or, as her counsel put it 
would be the babysitter, his counsel, on instructions, refused to 
guarantee that the husband would ba there at night, but would 
ensure that someone with whom the children were familiar would be 
there. The Court toQk note of the refusal of what it conaidexed 
to be a perfectly reasonable request in refusing this 
interlocutory application. 

�s fox his employment, as he is self-employed, his hours he 
stated can be as flexible as he wished to make them, and it would 
be up to him to organise his work around the schedule. His 

work had to be done when·the offices a�e empty, so it 
would normally be done in the evenings or at weekendu. In our 
view this statement has to be read in the l,i9ht of his refusal 
'outlined above to undertake to ha in the house if granted·limited 
staying access. As to domestic duties, h� was perfectly sble to 
cook, clean and iron, 

Towards the conclusion of"his ozoss-examination the husband
was asked what hls Housing position would be. Be.believed, and
p�oduced a ietter from the Housing Con,nittee to the effect that he 
could rent or buy �roperty provided h& continued to reside in the 
Island. He stated that he had no intention of leaving Jersey, 
whether he was the principal carer or not, but that if he were to 
be the principal carer, he would attempt to raise a mortgage to 
buy out the wife's interest irt�� 't'""'b }.,Q�-t.. This would, he 
conceded, be extremely dif�ioult as he had no track record of 
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sufficient earnings through the company bu� had approached a 
wealthy ex-customer. 

Counsel having agz-eed to make furthe.:: en'quiry as to his 
position under the Housing Law, al\d pi:oduoed to us the husband's 
letter to the Housing Committee which we believe fairly aeta out 
his position, we, therefore, accept counse"l' s statement,: ; · 

. Put generally, to sum up it was really the wife'.e · aggression, 
her using the children in the matrimonial disputes; her swearing 
and lack of patience whioh concerned him. 

,.. 

�duoationally and in general morality, they would receive 
better instruction from him. 

In cross-examination, the husband desoribed the children in 
October/December, 1991, when they were in the matrimonial hom� 
with him, aa being generally fine, , though once o:z: twice � wet 
her bed. �here were times when after access with their mother 
t-hay were a little reticent, but qenerally they were relaxed with 
him and his parenta. 

He .conceded, very fairly and to his credit, that when he sees 
the children (three times·a week at the moment) they are 
reasonably relaxed again and settled into ·a new routine. They are 
now·less "clingy" than bef,ore. 

He atill qave them meals, and. said that_ he had noticed that 
N , previously always a finicky eater was now growing up and 

filling out a bit and (to hia obvious pleasure) was eating better 
than ever before. He had no reason to believe that the children 
had been "abused" (in the broadest sense) by their mother. At the 
moment it appear� that the wife is looking after them well, 

As to their swearing, 'J'"' does use the word "bastard" 
occasionally, usually when fighting with hei sister. He made no 
report of other bad language, and it seemed clear to us that, ,i'f. 
the mother had sworn, it was not done in suoh a way as to 
encourage any form o! habitual bad language by the children. 
Evidence was given by Miss Nieola Logan, a nu:sery nurse who baa 
known the childxen sinoe they started at Nurse�y. 
During the tnree periods which most concern the Court, viz. 
Ootobe�, 1991, to the end of Janua:y, 1992, fram then until the 
end of April, 1992, and frQm then until now. She was unable to 
see any difference in behaviour during any period. 

In the-course of his closing adch:esa, counsel for the husband 
referred the Cou�t to several recent caees, We have taken note of 
his submissions in this respect. 

We think that the most useful �emarkt were those of Butler­
Sloss LJ, in JI& j (a Minor) August [1991) ram. Law 302t 
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"BU%'LIIR-BLOSS W, all owing t.b _. .-ppeal, ••ld t.b•t: t.b• cld,.ld r •

nJt'•.l:'e w•• t:.be EJ..r•t ud par.-moant: ooa•ideration. l'hllft n• 
.ao ,pzw•u.apt:.icm �hat on• parent •bouJ.d .N preler� to another 
par•nt �o.r tb� gurpo•• ot loo�.tng att•� • child at a 
pa�t£oular aga, Zt wa• Jilely tbat a young o.b11d, 
·pa.rt.tcula.rly • litt.1� gJ.�J., would !>ii •.zpeoted f:o be .-.tt:.b b•r
.motJJer but: tl.aat:.wa• au.bj•ot to t.b• ova�.r.tdtnsr :fact� tbt: t.b•
cbild'• w•l�are ••• t.b• paramount: aon•Jd•.r•t.ton. rt ,, ••
na.tu.r.al �oz young c.bild'ren to ,be w.ttb motller• but:, .la
cli•pvte, it: v•• • acmdd•�ation .rai:.be.r- tha.a a pn•uapt:.to.a 11• 

·Taking a11 this evidenoe and these fact0%8 into
conside�ation, we are quite clear in our minds as to what our 
judgment should be. 

It is quite true, and she shewed this in the witness box, 
that the wife is highly strung and�xcitable, It is equally true 
that in o·ther p:rooeed-ings she has· lied· ·to the Court;· and equally 
that there have been occasions on which she has ehewn deplorably 
little respect for the orders of the Court, a factor which she rnay 
care to take into account in her futuxe behaviou�. It is equally 
true that she attempted, as she has tdrnitted, to remove the 
children in the summer of 1991 from the aegis of the husband; 
whilst her behaviour during that summer when the marriage was 
collapsing shews a severe lack of self-restraint, desperate though 
she may have been, as we accept, for love �nd comfort from her 
husband, It was put to her that she h�d single-mindedly 
manipulated the children for her own ends. It suffices to say 
that we accept her denial, 

Ag�inst that it is clear that she is a loving and devoted 
mother, who has made a home for the ohildten and brought her life 
and spending under control. 

Against that the husband in otl� view shews up very poorly, 
It is clear to us from his evidence, and confirmed by her, that 
from the beginning of the marriage he ahewed her little affection 
or understanding, particularly when $he was under etrees. In 
pa�tioular we accept the wife's statement t�at when under strese 
she was told off as if she were a child, 

� main pa�t of his· case concerned allegations of three 
assaults on the children, which if tbey poour:ed at all ·were so 
minor in character as to be unworthy to be plao�d as evidence 
before us. 

As to the wife's assa�lts on him in the summer of 1991, we 
consider, havin9 heard him, tb�t his manne� and behaviour we�e 
such as.to provoke his wife; and we note that when -subjected to 
provocation, as in the assault ooc�rring on or about 20th July, 
1991, and in that of 24th April, 1992, he was prepared to use 
violence. We find that his wife had every xeason to be frightened 
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of him on that latte� occasion, and this is a faotor which we bear 
-in mind.

As to his evidence on his finances, we find hia evidence 
particularly in the affidavit to be less than frank: and we a:e 
far from satisfied that he haa this side of his life und•r 
control. For so intelligent a man we find the poaition he has 
·placed himself in to be quite extraordinary, and far from the best
interests of his family. We may a4d that hia lack of frankness in
this area reinforced our view of his evidence in general.

We accept that he is a pe�feotly,competent father and that in 
his own way he loves hia children, We were not, however, 
imp�esaed with his commitment to a daily �outine and agree with 
the wife's comment that he would find someone else to do the work, 
We �ote also his attitude towards the payment 9f m.aintenanoe for 
the children. 

., 

· . We· have ·no hesitation in awarding· care and '·c·�ntrol ·to the·
mother with joint custody to both parents, 
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